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Notice
Notice is hereby given that the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of R S Brothers
Retail India Private Limited will be held on Friday, September 30, 2022 at 10.00 a.m. at the registered
office of the Company situated at Door No: 7-2-1740, Opposite To Fire Station Office, Main Road,
Sanath Nagar, Hyderabad - 500018, Telangana, India to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1. Adoption of Financial Statements of the Company:

To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022,
including the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement for the financial year ended on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors (‘the Board”) and
Auditors thereon, and to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022
together with the reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon be and are hereby received, considered, approved and

adopted.”

by order of the Board of Directors of
R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

T
Venkateswarlu Potti

Place: Hyderabad Director
Date: 02/09/2022 DIN: 01430443




Notes

1.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and, on a
poll, to vote instead of himself and the Proxy need not be a Member of the company.

Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received in the enclosed Proxy Form at the Registered
Office of the company not less than forty-eight hours before the time fixed for the Meeting,

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A Member
holding more than ten percent of total share capital of the company carrying voting rights may
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

Members/Proxies are requested to bring the attendance slips duly filled in for attending the Meeting.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of Meeting and
ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, a Member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged
at any time during the business hours of the company. All documents referred to in the Notice and
accompanying explanatory statement are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the company
on all working days of the company between 10:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. upto the date of the Annual
General Meeting and at the venue of the Meeting for the duration of the Meeting.

Route-map to the venue of the Meeting is provided at the end of the Annual Report.
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. Directors’ Report

To,
The Members,
R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Fourteenth Annual Report of the Company with the
Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Financial Results of our operations
The Financial results for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 are given below:
(Amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Financial Year ended Financial Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Total Revenue 156359.78 80503.49
Total expenses 150064.13 77988.73
Profit / (Loss) before tax 6295.65 2514.76
Tax expense:
Current tax expense for current year 2134 969.20
Current tax expense relating to prior years
Deferred tax expenses/(benefit) -581.47 -817.79
Profit / (Loss) for the year 4743.12 2363.35
Basic Earnings per share 58.48 29.14

State of Company’s affairs and future outlook

The Company is engaged in the business of trading of textiles, garments and other allied business
activities. Business operations during the year were carried out satisfactorily registering growth in profit.
The Company is expecting further growth in the upcoming year. The management is exploring various
options to diversify its operations.

Company’s performance
Revenue from the operations of the Company has been increased from Rs.796,12,26,000/- for the FY

2020-21 to Rs.1551,97,15,000/- for the FY 2021-22.

Total revenue of the Company has been increased from Rs.805,03,49,000/- for the FY 2020-21 to
Rs.1563,59,78,000/- for the FY 2021-22. -

Net Profit of the Company has been increased from Rs.23,63,35,000/- for the FY 2020-21 to
Rs.47,43,12,000/- for the FY 2021-22.




Material changes and commitments if any affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this Financial Statements relate and the date of the

report
There have been no material changes and commitments for the likely impact affecting financial position

between end of the financial year and the date of the report.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators/ courts/ tribunals impacting the

going concern status and the Company’s operations in future
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts which would impact the going

concern status of the Company and its future operations.

Share Capital
Authorized Share Capital: During the year under review, there was no change in Authorized Share Capital

of the Company. Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022 was Rs.9,00,00,000/-
comprising of 90,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.

Paid-up Share Capital: During the year under review, there was no change in Paid-up Share Capital of the
Company. Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022 was Rs. 8,11,00,000/- comprising
of 81,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.

Buy Back of Securities: The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under
review.

Sweat Equity: The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

Bonus Shares: The Company has not issued any bonus shares during the year under review.

Equity Shares with differential voting rights: The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with

differential voting rights during the year under review.

Employees Stock Option: The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees.

Deposits
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits from the public within the meaning of

Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
during the year under review.

Transfer to Reserves
The Board of Directors has decided to transfer the entire amount of profits for FY 2021-22 to the reserves

and surplus as detailed in the financial statements.

Dividend
Your Directors have not recommended any dividend on Equity Shares during the year under review.

Transfer of unclaimed dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund
During the year, there was no unclaimed dividend amount to transfer to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures, and Associate Companies
During the year under review, there were no Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies to the

Company.




Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments made under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013

During the year under review, the Company has not made any loans or investments under Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013. However, the Company has given Corporate Guarantees and has complied with
the provisions of Sections 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties
Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, is appended as Annexure-A to the Directors’

Report.

Directors

Mr. P.Venkateswarlu, Mr. T.Prasada Rao, Mr. S.Raja Mouli, Mr. Seerna Suresh, Mr. P V S Abhinay, Mr.
T Rakesh and Mr. T Keshav Gupta are continuing as Board Members of the Company, are continuing as
the Directors of the Company. There was no change in the composition of the Board in the relevant

financial year.

Based on the confirmations received from all the directors, none of the directors are disqualified from
appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act 2013

Board Meetings
The Board met Eleven (11) times during the financial year 2021-2022 viz., on 30.04.2021, 21.06.2021,

26.07.2021, 08.08.2021, 24.08.2021, 01.10.2021, 20.10.2021, 23.10.2021, 06.11.2021, 25.11.2021
28.12.2021 the intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period prescribed by the

Companies Act, 2013.

Attendance of each director at the Board Meetings and General Meeting held during the year 2021-22 is
as follows:

Date of Board P T Prasada | S Raja S PVS T Keshav T

Meeting |Venkateswarlu Rao Mouli | Suresh | Abhinay Gupta Rakesh
30.04.2021 Present Present Present | Present Present Present Present
21.06.2021 Present Present Present | Present Present Present Present
26.07.2021 Present Present Present | Present Present Present Present
08.08.2021 Present Present Present | Present Present Present Present
24.08.2021 Present Present Present | Present Present Present Present
01.10.2021 Present Present Present | Present Present Present Present
20.10.2021 Present Present Present | Present Present Present Present
23.10.2021 Present Present Present | Present Present Present Present
06.11.2021 Present Present Present | Present Present Present Present
25.11.2021 Present Present Present | Present Present Present Present
28.12.2021 Present Present Present | Present Present Present Present

General Meetings During the Year 2021-22

Attendance
Date of Total number of Number of
Type of Meeting ate o Members entitled to umbe % of Total
Meeting . members .
attend at the Meeting Shareholding
attended
Extra Ordmg‘ry General 23/10/2021 5 5 100
Meeting 3
Annual General Meeting 30/11/2021 5 5 100




Auditors

Statutory Auditors

In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit
and, Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, M/s. R C V & Co., Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad (Firm
Registration No. 017180S) was appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (Five)
consecutive years from the conclusion of Annual General Meeting held in the year 2019 up to the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024.

The Company has received a certificate from M/s. R C V & Co., Chartered Accountants, confirming their
eligibility to continue as Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 141 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder.

The Report given by the M/s. R C V & Co., Auditors on the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2022 of the Company is part of the Annual Report. The notes to the accounts referred to in the
Auditors” Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

Internal Auditors
The Company has appointed internal auditors of the Company as required under section 138 read with

Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The statutory auditors have considered the report given by the internal auditors, in determining the nature,
timing and extent of their audit procedures.

Cost Records
Cost Records are not required to be maintained by the Company under Section 148 of the Companies Act,

2013. Accordingly, such accounts and recards are not maintained.

Cost Audit
In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 & 4 of The

Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Cost Audit is not applicable to the Company.

Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the
Board had appointed M/s B S S & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (FRN:P2012AP026600)
to undertake the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2021-22.

The Secretarial Audit Report in ‘Form MR-3’ for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 is annexed
herewith marked as Annexure — D to this report.

Explanation or comments on qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made

by the Auditors in their reports

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report.

Particulars of Emplovyees
The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable
to the Company.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read
with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

are provided as per Annexure-B.




Risk Management .
The Management of the Company has formed a risk management team to frame, implement and monitor

the risk management plan for the Company. The Board is responsible for reviewing the risk management
plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has adequate internal control systems commensurate with the size of the Company and
nature of its business. These internal controls are continuously reviewed for effectiveness and are
augmented by written policies and guidelines. The internal controls of the company are designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the objectives:

- Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

- Adequacy of safeguard of assets; and

- Reliability of financial controls.

The integrity and reliability of the internal controls are achieved through clear policies and procedures.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has been

constituted with following members:

Mr. P.Venkateswarlu, Director - Chairperson
Mr. S.Rajamouli, Director - Member
Mr. Tiruveedhula Prasada Rao, Director - Member

The Company has adopted a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy indicating the activities to be
undertaken by the company. During the year under review, the Company has conducted various CSR
programs in the areas of providing food and water. The report on CSR activities for FY 2021-22 is

enclosed as Annexure-C.

During the year 2021-22, the CSR Committee met one time on 30/04/2021. Particulars relating to the
attendance at the CSR Committee meetings held during the year are given below:

Name of the Director Meetings held during the year Meetings attended
Mr. P.Venkateswarlu - Chairperson 01 01
Mr. S.Rajamouli - Member . 01 01
Mr. Tiruveedhula Prasada Rao - 01 01
Member

Disclosure of composition of Audit Committee
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies

(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

Vigil Mechanism
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings

of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

Declaration given by Independent Directors
Appointment of Independent Directors does not applicable to the Company and Declaration of

Independent Directors under Section 149(6) of Companies Act not Applicable.

Company’s Policy relating to directors appointment, payment of remuneration and discharge of
their duties




The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are
not applicable to the Company and hence the Company has not devised any policy relating to
appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Annual Return

As your company do not have an operational website, Annual Return in Form MGT-7 pursuant to section
134(3) (a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is filed directly with Registrar of Companies and not
displayed elsewhere. ' '

Conservation_of energy, research and development, technology absorption. foreign exchange
earnings and outgo
A. Energy Conservation: The measures taken for energy conservation are:

o Installed energy efficient LED lights and Variable frequency drives the stores.

e Adopted good maintenance practice to avoid energy losses and optimized energy consumption.

B. Technology Absorption: The Information on Technology Absorption was not annexed as same were
not applicable to the Company.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows: Nil
Foreign Exchange outflow in terms of actual outflows: Nil

Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors under Section 143 (12) other than those which are

reportable to the Central Government
There were no frauds as reported by the Statutory Auditors under sub-section 12 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 along with Rules made there-under other than those which are reportable to the

Central Government.

Secretarial Standards
The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards.

Company’s Policy on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at

Workplace
The Company prohibits any form of sexual harassment and any such incidence is immediately

investigated and appropriate action taken in the matter against the offending employee(s) based on the
nature and the seriousness of the offence. The Company has a policy on Prohibition, Prevention and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (the Policy) and matters connected therewith or
incidental thereto covering all the aspects as contained under the “The Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal) Act, 2013” notified by the Government of India vide
Gazette Notification dated 23" April, 2013.

There was no case of sexual harassment reported during the year under review.

Directors’ Responsibilitv Statement:
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors herby confirms as under:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the




state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

¢) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e¢) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Personnel
The relationship with the employees at different levels in the Company remained cordial throughout the
year. Your Directors place their appreciation for the contribution made by all the employees of the

Company.

The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptey
Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of the financial year

During the year under review, Company has not made any application under The Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).

The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement

and the valuation done while taking loan from the banks or financial institutions along with the

reasons thereof
The requirement to disclose the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of

onetime settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof is not applicable.

Acknowledgements:

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants, and
various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your Companies activities during
the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their support and
confidence reposed on your Company.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

R ([ NoArtt g

P.Venkateswarlu S.Raja Mouli

Place: Hyderabad ' Director Director
Date: 02/09/2022 DIN: 01430443 DIN: 01980976
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Annexure—A

Particulars of contracts / arrangements made with related parties
[Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, and

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 — AOC-2]

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length
transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered in to during the year ended March 31, 2022,

which were not at arm's length basis.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions with related parties during year ended

March 31, 2022.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

S

; AN\
P.Venkateswarlu S.Raja Mouli

Place: Hyderabad Director Director
Date: 02/09/2022 DIN: 01430443 DIN: 01980976




CIN: U17200TG2008PTC058454

Registered Office Address: Door No:7-2-1740,0pposite to Fire Station Office, Main Road, Sanath Nagar,

Hyderabad - 500018, Telangana, India
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R S BROTHERS RETAIL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under
Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(Amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stalec

Annexure-B

Gross Nature |of
remunerati Qualnﬁca . . Last . . emploympn
S. | Name of the | Date of on tion & | Ag | Relationship Emblo Designati | t, whethier
No. | Employee Joining (in Experien | e with Director(s) melft Y | on contractual
Rupees) ce (yrs) or
P otherwisg
Brother: Promoter,
1 | P.Venkateswarlu| 31.03.2008 | 450 | UG &40 | 63 | D-Satvanarayana |, Director | LX€Cutive
Son: Abhinay Director
Venkata Sai P
Promoter,
2 S.Rajamouli 31.03.2008 450 UG & 40 | 61 | Son: S.Suresh Nil Director | Executive
Director
Sons: Promoter,
3 T.Prasada Rao | 31.03.2008 300 UG &40 | 62 | T.Keshav Gupta | Nil Director | Executive
and T.Rakesh Director
. . Father: . . Executive
4 P V Sai Abhinay| 01.06.2018 120 CA&S5 | 28 P.Venkateswarlu Nil Director Director
' Graduate Father: Nil . Executive,
5 S Suresh 04.07.2016 120 & 8 34 S.Rajamouli Director Director
Post Father: Nil Executive
6 T Keshav Gupta | 01.06.2018 120 Grzh;ate 33 T Prasada Rao Director | Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02/09/2022

P.Venkateswarlu

Director

DIN: 01430443

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

)

S.Raja Mouli
Director
DIN: 01980976




Annexure-D
Annual Report on CSR Activities

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company strives to serve the society by setting the standard for quality and safe life. CSR Policy aims to provide a
dedicated approach to the development of community around us in the areas of health care including preventive health care
and sanitation, promoting education and employment enhancing vocation skills, empowerment of women and rural areas
development. The CSR Committee acts in an advisory capacity to the Board with respect to policies and strategies that
affect your Company's role as a socially responsible organization. The CSR Committee ensures that the implementation and
monitoring of the projects is in compliance with the CSR Objectives and Policy of the Company.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
N Number of meetings of CSR| Number of meetings of CSR
NS;'. Name of Director De5|g[r)1;’gztr:’£sh:]a;:)ure of Committee held during the | Committee attended during the
year year
1 |P. Venkateswarulu | Chairman of CSR Committee 1 1
{Executive Director)
2 |S. Rajamouli Member of CSR Committee 1 1
{Executive Director)
3 [T. Prasada Rao Member of CSR Committee 1 1
{Executive Director)

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the company: NA

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any;

si Amount available for set-off from preceding [Amount required to be set-off for the financial
No. financial years year, if any

) (in Rs) (in Rs)

Financial Year

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.29,21,99,848/-

7.

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.58,43,997/-.

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢):Rs. 58,43,997/-.

8.
(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount Spent for | 7ota| Amount transferred to Unspent| Amount transferred to any fund specified under
the Financial Year. | cSR Account as per section 135(6). | Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section
(in Rs.) : 135(5).
Amount | Date of transfer. | Name of the Fund [ Amount | Date of transfer.
58,83,250 Nil Nil
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil
(1) {2) 3 | 4 (5) (6) {7) (8) {9) (10) (1)
Sl.| Name of the | Item | Local |Location of the project.|Project| Amount | Amount | Amount | Mode Mode of
No| Project. | from | area duratio| allocated | spent in |transferred| of Implementation -
the list|(Yes/N n for the the |to Unspent |Implem Through
of o). project (in| current CSR  [entatio|  Implementing




(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

il Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8¢+8d+8e): Rs.58,83,000/-

activiti Rs.). |financial |Accountfor| n- Agency
esin State District Year (in | the project | Direct Name CSR
Sched Rs.). asper [(Yes/N Registr
ule VII Section o). ation
to the 135(6) number.
Act. (inRs.)
Total - - - - - - - -
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) @ G | @ (5) (6) M (8
Sl.| Name of the | Item |Local| Location of the project. | Amount Mode of Mode of implementation -
MNo| Project |fromthe| area spent for implementation) Through implementing
list of | (Yes/ the - Direct agency.
acti}rities No). State. District. Project (Yes/No). Name. CSR
n (inRs.). registration
chedul number.
Vil to thzl
Act.
1 | School Fees
for various
Poor i) Yes Telangana | Hyderabad |34,04,000 Yes i
Students and
Orphans
Promoting
eye health
care . .
2 including i) No | AllIndia NA 9,00,000 Yes - -
preventive
health care
Promoting
3 | education of | (i) No | AllIndia NA 6,25,000 Yes - -
girl child
Rural
4 [Development| (x) No All India NA 3,54,000 Yes -
projects
The Akshaya
5| Eradicating | o No | Alindia NA | 500,000 No Palra 55200000285
hunger Foundation
6 Promot.mg (i) No | Telangana | Nizamabad | 100,000 Yes -
education
Total 58,83,000




(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. No. Particular Amount (Rs.)
{i) _|Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 58,43,997
(i) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year 58,83,000
(i) [Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 39,003
(iv)  |Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Nil
inancial years, if any
(v)  [Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii}-(iv)] Nil
9

(é) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA

Sl. (Preceding| Amount transferred to Amount spent in | Amount transferred to any fund Amount
No.| Financial Unspent CSR Account under| the reporting | specified under Schedule Vil as |remaining to be
Year. section 135 (6) (in Rs.) Financial Year per section 135(6), if any. spent in
(inRs.). Name of | Amount | Dateof | Succeeding
theFund | (inRs). | transfer, |financial years.
(inRs.)
Total - - - -

b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

() ) | 3 | 4) () (6) 4] (8) (9)
Sl. | ProjectID. [Name of the|Financial Year| Project Total Amount | Cumulative | Status of the
No. Project. | in which the | duration. | amount | spenton amount project -
’ project was allocated | the project | spent atthe| Completed
commenced. for the in the end of IOngoing.
project (in | reporting | reporting
Rs.). Financial | Financial
Year (in Rs)|Year. (in Rs.)

Nil

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through
CSR spent in the financial year

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Nil

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address
etc.: Nil

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset):
il

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): NA

For and on behalf of the CSR Committee and Board of Directors of
R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

RS (pe T

P. Venkateswarlu S. Rajamouli
Place: Hyderabad Chairman of the CSR Member of the CSR
Date: 02/09/2022 Committee Committee



A RCV&CO

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
R S BROTHERS RETAIL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion:

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of R S BROTHERS RETAIL
INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,

and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, and its Profit, and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.0ur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe

that the audit evidenc have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.

Office : Zoom House, 4th Floor, 8-2-681/A/1/A, Road No.12, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500 034
Telangana. Tel :040-2338 2339, e-mail : rcvcoauditors@gmail.com



Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fail:.gjg{:\nd are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

Ca ™

or error. e




In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative

but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements+

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion bn
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.




* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding indepcndence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (the Order) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure- A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent

applicable.




2. As

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the
Companies (Accounting Standards specified) Rule 2006 (as amended) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014,
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t
March, 2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 315 March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of  the Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

report in “Annexure B”.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the limits
prescribed by Section 197 for maximum permissible managerial remuneration is not

applicable to a Private Limited Company

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which impact its financial
position
ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education ection Fund by the Company.




iv.(a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b)The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have
been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that
has caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) contain any material mis-statement.

v, The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the
provision of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013

FOR RCV & CO.,

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02.09.2022

/) ( CHRAJU)
«®/  PARTNER
CCOMEMBERSHIP NO.204732

Z




ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

section of our report of even date)

i. In respect of the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company:

(a)(i)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(if) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible

(b)

(d)

(e)

assets.
The Company has formulated a programme of physical verification of all the fixed
assets by the management in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.
Accordingly, the physical verification of the fixed assets has been carried out by
management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification .
According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined
by us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed / Transfer deed /
conveyance deed provided to us, we report that the title deeds comprising all the
immovable properties of land and buildings are held in the name of the Company as
at the balance sheet date.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
records examined by us, the Company has neither revalued any of its Property,
Plant and Equipment nor its Intangible Assets during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable
According to the information and explanations given to us,no proceedings have
been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (as amended in
2016) and Rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of

the Order is not applicable.




ii. In respect of the inventories of the Company:

ifi.

(@) Physical verification of inventories have been conducted by the management
during the year which, in our opinion, is at reasonable intervals; and, in our
opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on verification between physical stock
and book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventories

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate,
at points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns and statements
comprising (stock statements, book debt- statements, statements on ageing
analysis of the debtors and Trade Payable) filed by the Company with such
banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the unaudited books of

account of the Company, of the respective quarters.

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, hence
reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given
loans to directors/ to a company in which directors are interested as per provisions
of section 185 of the Companies Act,2013. According to the information and

explanations given to us, the company has not granted any loans or made
investments or security to the persons specified under Section 186 of the Act. The
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the

Companies




viii.

vi.

vii

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014, as amended. Therefore, the
provisions of the clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order

are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us , the company is not
required to maintain the cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act
2013. Hence reporting under this clause is not applicable to the company

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory

dues:

(@)The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,

including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and
Service Tax ,Sales Tax and Value Added Tax, and other material statutory dues
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities and there were no arrears of
outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a

period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of Income tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess which have not been

deposited as on 31 March 2022 on account of disputes

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examinations of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or

disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in

the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided by the

management, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings

or payment of interest thereon to any lender;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit

procedures, the Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial




¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided by the
management, terms loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were

obtained

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and an overall examination
of the Balance Sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis

have been applied for long term purposes by the Company

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company, the company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,

associates or joint ventures

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examinations of the records of the company, the company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures on the pledge of securities held in its subsidies, joint ventures or

associate companies

X. a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company has not raised monies by way of initial
public offer or further public offer including debt. Hence the provisions of clause

(xa) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year under review.

Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable




xi a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view on the Financial Statements and according to the information and
explanations provided by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company

or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with

the Central Government.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower

complaints have been received during the year by the company

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)(a),(b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as

required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to

the Company during the year, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our

audit procedures. ,—
)




XV

XVi.

Xvii.

xviii.

XiX.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of

the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clauses 3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not
applicable The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
Regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly Clause 3(xvi)(c) & (d) of
the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately

preceding financial year

There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the year. Accordingly

Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall

due.




(xx) The Provisions section 135 of the Act are applicable to the company. There are no
unspent amounts on on-going projects. The details of the amounts spent as per the
provisions of the Act are given vide note No.37(o).

(xxi) The financial statement of the company is standalone financials so the requirement of

reporting under this clause (XXI) of the order is not applicable.

FOR RCV&cCO,,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

PLACE: HYDERABAD

DATE :02.09.2022

MEMBERSHIP NO.204732



“ANNEXURE - B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF R S BROTHERS RETAIL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of R S BROTHERS
RETAIL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the
essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial

reporting was est d and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all




Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over

financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those

policies and procedures that

(1)  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material

effect on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the financial reporting
criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal controls

stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR RCV&CO,,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
REGN. NO.017180S

PLACE: HYDERABAD
DATE :02.09.2022




Acknowledgement Number:566581151290922

Date of filing:29-Sep-2022

INDIAN INCOME TAX RETURN ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

[Where the data of the Return of Income in Form ITR-1 (SAHAJ), ITR-2, ITR-3, ITR-4(SUGAM), ITR-5, ITR-6, ITR-7

filed and verified]
(Please see Rule 12 of the Income-tax Rules, 1962)
PAN AADCR9381B
Name R.S.BROTHERS RETAIL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Address
Status Private Company
Filed u/s 139(1) Return filed on or before due date

Current Year business loss, if any

Total Income

Book Profit under MAT, where applicable

Adjusted Total Income under AMT, where applicable
Net tax payable

Interest and Fee Payable

Total tax, interest and Fee payable

Taxable iIncome and Tax detalls

Taxes Paid

(+)Tax Payable /(-)Refundable (6-7)
Accreted Income as per section 115TD
Additional Tax payable u/s 115TD
Interest payable u/s 115TE

Additional Tax and interest payable

Tax and interest paid

Accreted Income & Tax Detall

(+)Tax Payable /(-)Refundable (12-13)

Form Number ITR-6

Assessment Year

2022-23

D.NO. 7-2-1740 WARE HOUSE NO. 14 AND 15 , KSSP WARE HOUSING COMPLEX , OPP: FIRE STATION, MAIN ROAD, ,
SANATH NAGAR , HYDERABAD , 36-Telangana , 91-India , 500018

e-Filing Acknowledgement Number 566581151290922

1

10

11

12

13

14

0
81,03,01,130
0

0
20,39,36,589
94,35,541
21,33,72,130
21,33,72,130
0

0

This return has been digitally signed by POTTI VENKATESWARLU in the capacity of Director having PAN AAOPP2527M from IP address

183.82.0.129 on 29-Sep-2022

DSC SI. No. & Issuer 2908692 & 124478742695670CN=Verasys CA 2014,0U=Certifying Authority,0O=Verasys Technologies Pvt Ltd.,C=IN

System Generated

Barcode/QR Code

Bt

AADCR9381B0656658115129092272F317ED3F7E14FF6777C36B4CD8539BFADDF382

DO NOT SEND THIS ACKNOWLEDGEMENT TO CPC, BENGALURU




NAME OF THE ASSESSEE

ADDRESS

STATUS

PREVIOUS YEAR
ASSESSMENT YEAR
PAN NO

CIRCLE

DATE OF FORMATION

RS BROTHERS RETAIL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

7-2-1740, Warehouse No.14 & 15
Opp Fire Station, Main Road,
Sanathnagar, Hyderabad - 500 018

PRIVATE LIMITED COMPANY
2021-22

2022-23

AADCR 9381B

ACIT 3(1)

31-03-2008

COMPUTATION OF TOTAL INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021 - 2022

|: INCOME FROM BUSINESS:
PROFIT/(-) LOSS AS PER P& L A/C

ADD :

Depreciation as per books
Donations

Interest on TDS

Income Tax Earlier Years

PF Employee Contribution Late Payment
Expenses under CSR Scheme

Provision for Gratuity

Less : Depreciation as per SEC 32 OF IT

Less : Profit on sale of assets considered seprately
Less : Donations recognized under Secion 35 (1) (i)

Less : Actual amount paid towards Gratuity
TOTAL INCOME

LESS: DEDUCTIONS UNDER CHAPTER VI

TAX THERE ON
ADD: SURCHARGE @ 10 %

ADD: EDUCATION CESS @ 4%

LESS: TAX DEDUCTED AT SOURCE

LESS: ADVANCE TAX PAID

15/Sep/21
15/Dec/21
15/Mar/22
ADD: INTEREST U/S U/S 234B
ADD: INTEREST U/S U/S 234C

629,565,275

361,157,222
34,405,457
4,097,087
3,499
194,738
5,883,250

52,311,655 458,052,908

1,087,618,183
268,085,762
394,227

8,837,069 277,317,058

50,000,000
25,000,000
45,000,000

4,276,314
5,169,226

Balance Tax Payable

LESS : SELF ASSESSMENT TAX PAID

Tax Payable / Refund

For and On Behalf of Board of Directors

(P VENKATESWARLU})
DIRECTOR i

7

(S RAJAMOULI)
DIRECTOR

810,301,125

810,301,125

810,301,125
OR
810,301,130

178,266,249
17,826,625

196,092,874
7,843,715

203,936,589
12,664,623

191,271,966

120,000,000

71,271,966
9,435,540

80,707,506
80,707,506




R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited
(CIN : U17200TG2008PTC58454)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
Particulars 31 Mar 2022 31 Mar 2021
LEQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' funds
a) Share capital 3 811.00 811.00
b) Reserves and surplus 4 23,760.46 19,017.34
¢) Money Received Against share Warrants - -
24,571.46 19,828.34
2. Share Application Pending for Allottment
3. Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 5 6,386.58 9,303.24
(b) Defferred Tax Liabilities(Net) - -
(c)Other Long Term Liabilities 6 405.84 237.38
(d) Long-term provisions 7 1,379.46 944,72
8,171.88 10,485.34
4.Current liabilities
(a) Short-term Borrowings 8 9,302.36 9,213.34
(b) Trade payables 9
A. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - -
B. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small Enterprises 23,365.00 18,737.88
(c) Other current liabilities 10 3,185.15 2,219.22
(d) Short-term provisions 7 807.13 189.83
36,659.64 30,360.27
TOTAL 69,402.98 60,673.95
II. ASSETS
1.Non-current assets
a )Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
(i) Property Plant and Equipment 11 22,217.48 21,977.53
(ii) Intangible assets 12 133.67 142,22
(iii)Capital Work in Progress - -
b) Non Current Investments
¢ ) Deferred tax assets (Net) 13 3,977.06 3,395.59
d) Long-term loans and advances - -
¢) Other Non Current Assets 14 4,087.82 3,588.67
30,416.03 29,104.01
2.Current assets
a) Current Investments
b) Inventories 15 32,635.03 26,593.82
c) Trade receivables 16 2,297.01 2,443.44
d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 17 1,552.73 690.64
€) Short term loans and advances 18 2,442.43 1,692.46
f) Other current assets 19 59.75 149.58
38,986.95 31,569.94
TOTAL 69,402.98 60,673.95

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date

for RCV & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. :

e Smss o G

S Rajamouli
Director

For and on behalf of the Board of directors

P. Venkateswarlu
Director

Ch.*Raju
Partner
Membership No. 204732
UDIN NO:

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02/09/2022 Date: 02/09/2022

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02/09/2022




R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited
(CIN : U17200TG2008PTC58454)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ending 31st March 2022

(All amounts are in Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

Period ended Period ended
Particulars Note 31 Mar 2022 31 Mar 2021

INCOME

I: Revenuc from operations 20 1,55,197.15 79,612.26

1I; Other income 2% 1,162.63 891.23

I1L. Total Income(J+1II) 1,56,359.78 80,503.49
IV.EXPENSES

a).Cost of Material Consumed

b).Purchase of Stok-in-Trade 22 1,10,103.46 54,222.43

c).Changes of Inventories of Finished Goods WIP and Stock-in-Trade 23 -6,110.20 -2,410.22

d).Employee benefits expenses 24 16,439.85 9,247.66

€).Other Expenses 25 23,868.57 11,877.65

f).Finance costs 26 2,150.88 1,808.24

g) Depreciation and amortisation 27 3,611.57 3,242.97
Total expenses 1,50,064.13 77,988.73
V.Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and fax

(I11-1V) 6,295.65 2,514.76

VI. Exceptional Items -
VILProfit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (V-VI) 6,295.65 2,514.76
VIIl. Extraordinary Items - -
IX. Profit before tax (VII- VIII) 6,295.65 2,514.76
X.Tax expense
(a) Current Tax 2,134.00 969.20
(b) Deferred Tax -581.47 -817.79
Profit / (Loss) for period (IX - X) 4,743,12 2,363.35
Earnings per equity share in Rupees in Rupees :
Basic 58.48 29.14
Diluted 58.48 29.14
Nominal value of equity shares (Rs.) 10.00 10.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date
forRCV & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 0171

(r -

For and on behalf of the Board of directors
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Ch. Raju P. Venkateswarl S Rajamouli
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 204732

UDIN NO:

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02/09/2022

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02/09/2022

Place: Hyderaba
Date: 02/09/2022



R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited
Audited Cash flow statement for the period ending 31st March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lalkhs, except share data and uniess otherwise stated)

_

Year ended
31 Mar 2022

Year ended
31 Mar 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax and Extraordinary Items

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation
Deferred tax

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed asset
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Land

Operating profits/(losses) before working capital changes

Decrease / (increase) in inventories

Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables

(Decrease) /increase in Current Liabilities

Decrease / (increase) in other current asscts

Increase / (decrease) in long Term Loans and advances - Current Asset
Increase / (decrease) in Short Term Loans and advances - Current Asset

Cash flow from operations

Income taxes (paid)/ received, net

Income tax paid pertains to earlier vears
Net cash generated from operating activities - (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of additional assets

Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets
Interest income received

Net cash used in investing activities - (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
(Decrease) /increase in Non - Current Liabilities
Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets
Repayments made towards finance lease
Finance costs paid

Net cash used in financing activities - (C)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year
(A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
- Cash on hand
- Balances with banks
On current accounts

JorRCV&Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 0171

Ch. Raju
Partner
Membership No. 204732
UDIN NO:

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02/09/2022

6,295.65 2,514.76
3,611.57 3,242.97
581.47 817.79
-3.94 -2.39
10,484.76 6,573.13
-6,041.21 -2,206.49
146.44 1,375.05
6,299.37 -16.14
-659.39 -517.04
10,229.96 5,208.51
-2,134.00 -969.20
8,095.96 4,239.31
-3,828.05 -3,827.84
48.00 33.87
3,780.05 -3,793.97
-2,313.46 588.58
-1,140.37 -1,048.07
-3,453.83 -459.49
862.08 -14.15
690.64 704.79
1,552.72 690.64
594.49 466.79
958.24 223.85
1,552.72 690.64

For and on behalf of the Board of directors

S Rajamouli

Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02/09/2022



R.S.BROTHERS RETAIL INDIA PVT LTD
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March'2022

Note No. 1- CORPORATE INFORMATION

R S Brothers Retail India private Limited (the Company) was incorporated on 31.03.2008 vide CIN NO:
U17200TG2008PTC58454 to carry on the business of trading of textiles , garments and other allied business
activities

Note No. 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under historical cost convention in accordance with the
generally accepted accounting principles and Accounting Standards issued by the Companies (Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2014 as applicable and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous
year except otherwise stated. These financial statements are presented in INR and values are rounded off to
nearest lakhs except when otherwise indicated. The financial statements are approved for issue by the
Company's Board of Directors on 02.09.2022.

(b) Use of Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of
financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. Examples of such
estimates are provision for taxes, useful life of fixed assets etc., Although these estimates are based upon
Management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

(¢) Revenue Recognition

i. Sales : Revenue from Sales is recognized on delivery of goods to customers.
ii. Interest : Interest is recognized on time proportion basis.

iii. Other items of income are accounted for as and when the right to receive arises.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use

(e) Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment

1) Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is provided on the Straight line method as per the
classification and on the basis ol the rates specified in Schedule II of The Companies Act, 2013.Depreciation
on Additions to assets or where any asset has been sold or discarded is calculated on a Pro-rata basis from the
date of such addition or upto the date of such sale or discard as the case may be.

ii)  Depreciation on Assets acquired/disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with
referg he date of addition/disposal.




1ii) However, in the case of assets where the useful life has already exceeded the stipulated life
span of the respective class as per Schedule II, no further depreciation is provided, in those cases
where the written down value is less than the 5% historical cost of the asset.

(f) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of the cost of such asset, till such time as the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.
All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(g) INVENTORIES :

(FIFO) method after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Costs of
inventories comprise of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in brining the
inventories to their present location and condition.

(h). RETIREMENT BENEFITS TO EMPLOYEES :

i) Provident Fund : The company contributed to the Employees Provident Fund maintained under the
Employees Provident Fund scheme by the Central Government

ii) Employee State Insurance : The company contributed to Employee State Insurance maintained under
ESIC Act by the State Government

iii)  Gratuity : In accordance with the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the company
provides for gratuity eligible employees on the basis of their years of service and salary drawn.

iv) Short term Employee Benefits: Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense as per the
Companies scheme base on expected obligation on undiscounted basis.

(i) Impairment of Assets
As at each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of assets are assessed for any indication of impairment so
as to determine

- The provision for impairment loss, if any, required or
- The reversal, if any, required of impairment loss recognized in previous periods.
Impairment loss is recognized when the carryin g amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:

- Inthe case of individual assets, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use;
- In the cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the

cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in use;
(Value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of an
asset from isdispggal at the end of its useful life)




(j) Taxes on Income

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax computed in
accordance with the provisions of the Income tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and based on expected outcome of assesment/appeals.

Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognized on timing differences being the difference between taxable
income and accounting income that originate in one period if they are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

(k) Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provision are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of estimation,
if
- The company has a present obligation as a result of a past event

- A Probable Outflow of resources Expected to Settle the Obligation and

- The amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated

Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognized only when it is
virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received Contingent Liability is disclosed in the case of -

A present obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be

reauired to settle the ohligation.
A possible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote

Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

(D Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

(m) Foreign currency transactions and translations:

There are no foreign currency transactions entered by the company during the financial year.




R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited
Audited Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 Mar 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

3

(a)

(b)

(©)
(d)

()

Share capital

Authorised

90,00,000 (31 March 2021: 90,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

81,10,000 (31 March 2021: 81,10,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares

At the commencement of the year
Shares issued during the year
Shares bought back during the year
At the end of the year

31st March 2022
Number Amount

8,110,000 811.00

8,110,000 811.00

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is suject to the approval of the share holdes

in the ensuing general meeting

During the year ended 3 1st March 2022, no dividend is declared by the Board of Directors (Previous Year : NIL)

As at As at
31st March 31st March
2022 2021

900 .00 900.00
811.00 81100
811.00 811.00
31st March 2021
Number Amount
8110000 81100
8110000 811.00

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the Shareholders

Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates - Not Applicable

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Number of | % Hodling in Number of % Hodling in
Shares Held that class of Shares Held that class of
Class of shares / Name of shareholder
shares shares
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid with voting
rights
P Venkateswarulu 2,433,000 30% 2,433,000 30%
S Rajamouli 1,622,000 20% 1,622,000 20%
P M L Kumari 1,622,000 20% 1.622.000 20%
|" Prasada Rao 1,622,000 20% 1.622.000 20%
G Lalitha 811,000 10% 811,000 10%
Shares held by Promoters
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
No. of Shares % of Total % of Change No. of Shares | % of Total | % of Change
Promoter Name held at the end of Shares during the year | held at the end Shares during the year
the year of the year
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid with voting
rights
P Venkateswarulu 2.433.000 30% - 2,433,000 30%
S Rajamouli 1,622,000 20% 1,622,000 20% -
P M L Kumari 1,622,000 20% - 1.622.000 20% =
T Prasada Rao 1,622,000 20% - 1.622.000 20% -
G Lalitha 811.000 10% - 811,000 10% -

Note: Promoters are considered as per the Annual Return filed for the financial Year 2020-21




R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited
Audited Notes to the financial statemeats for the period ended 31 Mar 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

Reserves and surplus

Surplus / (Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Opening balance 19,017.34 16,653.99
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year 4,743.12 2,363.35
At the end of the year 23,760.46 19,017.34

Long-term borrowings

31st March 2022 31st March 2021 31st March 31st March
2022 2021
Secured
Term Loan from Banks 4,115.49 4,877.88 1,679.82 1,495.46
Assets acquired under finance lease(refer note (a) below) 420.62 692.61 231.76 181.46
Unsecured Loans from related parties
P Venkateswarlu 29.38 42.41 -
S Rajamouli 109.79 38.10
T Prasada Rao 30.54 314.10 -
P M L Kumari 1,402.17 3,191.77 -
P V L Sindhu 6.64 6.30
G Lalitha 2.78 - -
P V Sujatha 180.00 - -
PVL Spandana 89.17 140.07 -
6.386.58 9.303.24 1,911.58 1,676.92
* Amount disclosed under 'Short Term Borrowings'
Details of Nature of Security and terms of repayment for long-term borrowings - Refer Note No. 36
Other Long Term Liabilities
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Advances Received from Tenants 405.84 23738
405.84 237.38
Provisions
Short - term
31st March 2022 31st March 2021 31st March 31st March
2022 2021
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 1,379.46 944.72 -
Provision for Income Tax (Net) - - 807.13 189.83
1.379.46 944.72 807.13 189.83
Short Term Borrowings 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Loans Repayable on Demand
Secured Loans
Working Capital Loans from Banks - Rupee Loans 7.390.78 7,536.42
Current maturities of long term Debt (refer note 5) 1,679.82 1,495 .46
Current maturities of Equipment Finance (refer note 5) 231,76 181.46
9.302.36 9.213.34

Non-current portion

Current portion *

Details of Nat ccurity and terms of repayment for Short Term borrowings - Refer Note No.36




R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited
Audited Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 Mar 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

Trade Payable

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2022

As at 31 March, 2021

Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

23,365.00

18,737.88

Total

23,365.00

18,737.88

Steps have been taken to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006. Since no intimation has been received from the suppliers regarding their status under the said Act as at
31st March 2022, disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end, if any, have not been furnished. In the opinion of the management, the
impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act, is not expected to be material.

Trade Payables ageing schedule:

As at 31 March, 2022

As at 31 March, 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due

Outstanding for following periods from

Particulars date of payment due date of payment
Less than 1 Year| 1-2 Years Total Lesizl:n 1 1-2 Years Total
MSME = _ - e = =
Others 22,594.53 770.47 23,365.00 18,268.56 469.32 18,737.88
Disputed dues-MSME = = - u = =
Disputed dues - Others = = . = - a
Total 22,594.53 770.47 23,365.00 18,268.56 469.32 18,737.88

Other current liabilities

Creditors for Expenses
Employee benefits payable
Statutory dues payable

As at 31 March, 2022

As at 31 March, 2021

2,701.96
15.50
46769

1,285.85
670.56
262.81

3,185.15

2,219.22
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R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

Audited Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 Mar 2022

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

12 Intangible assets
Particulars Software Total Total
Gross Block
Balance as on 01.04.2021 365.72 365.72
Additions 58.97 58.97
Disposals / write off - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 424.69 424.69
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as on 01.04.2021 223.50 223.50
Amortisation for the year 67.52 67.52
Accumulated amortisation on Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 291.02 291.02
Net Block
As at 31 March 2021 142.22 142.22
As at 31 March 2022 133.67 133.67

13 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Related to Fixed Assets & disallowances under IT act

14 Other Non Current Assets
Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits
Rent Deposits

15 Inventories
Textiles & Garments

Others

31st March 2022

31st March 2021

3,977.06 3,395.59
3,977.06 3,395.59

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
366.03 335.50

3,721.79 3,253.17
4,087.82 3,588.67
32,635.03 26,524.83

- 68.99

32,635.03 26,593.82




R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

Audited Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 Mar 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

16

17

18

19

Trade receivables 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Other receivables
-Secured, considered good 0 0
-UnSecured, considered good 2,297.01 2,443 44
- Credit Impaired - -
Total 2,297 01 2443 44
Less: Allowances for doubttul Debts - -
Total Trade Receivables 2,29701 2,443 44
Trade Receivables ageing schedule:
As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due Outstanding for following periods from
f
Particulars date of payment due date of payment
Less than 6 6 Months - Total Less than 6 | 6 Months - Total
Months 1Year Months 1Year
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Goods 2,293.73 3.28 2,297.01 2,434.00 9.45 2,443.44
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered
Doubtful = = 2 = = -
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Goods - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Doubtful = - - - - -
Total 2,293.73 3.28 2,297.01 2,434.00 9.45 2,443.44
Cash and bank balances 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Cash and cash equivalents
- Cash on hand 594 49 466.79
-Balances with banks 958 24 223 85
- in current accounts
1.552.73 690.64
Short-term loans and advances
(unsecured, considered good)
Sales Tax - 18.82
Credit Card Receivables 30113 11525
Prepaid expenses 128.84 7775
Rent Receivable 51.70 -
Staff advances 922 11 27520
G S T Input Credit 1,038.65 1,205 44
2,442.43 1.692.46
Other current assets
Unaccrued Interest on vehicle loans - 93.56
Depsoit with Banks 59.08 5535
Loyaltry Rewards 067 067
59.75 149.58




R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

Audited Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 Mar 2022

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

20 Revenue from operations

Sales

21 Other income

Interest income
Insurance Claims

Rents received
Profit on sale of assets
Miscellaneous Income

22 Purchases of Stock in Trade

Textiles & Garments

Total

23 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods
Opening Stock of Finished Goods
Closing Stock of Finished Goods
Total

24 Employee benefits expenses
Salaries & wages
Provident Fund
Staff welfare expenses
PF Administrative Charges
ESI
Gratuity
Workmen Compensation

Bonus

Year ended Year ended
Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021
155,197.15 79,612.26
155,197.15 79,612.26
30.11 34,97
- 3.28
1,119.29 706.21
3.94 2.39
9.29 144 .38
1,162.63 891.23
110,103.46 54,222.43
110,103.46 54,222.43
26,524.83 24,114.61
32,635.03 26,524.83
-6,110.20 -2,410.22
13,956.50 7,932.52
566.20 357.90
428.76 196.33
42.84 15.21
267.56 142.80
523.12 167.85
1.97 3.23
652.90 431.82
16,439.85 9,247.66
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Audited Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 Mar 2022
{(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

25 Other Expenses

Advertisement 3,920.39 1,083.65
Business promotion expenses 506.24 8.16
Rent 5,945.69 4,021.68
Shop Maintenance - House Keeping Services 570.52 275.63
Shop Maintenance - Security Services 532.36 311.32
Show room maintenance 1,094.08 538.51
Carriage Inwards 1,105.14 595.28
Packing Material 1,796.86 1,111.39
Electricity Charges 2,184.10 1,321.27
Legal and professional charges 2,642.81 96.50
Insurance 1,630.72 1,162.68
Printing and stationery 180.09 83.69
Travelling and conveyance 277.63 77.74
Conveyance 41.91 19.47
Rates and taxes 292.01 189.69
Communication expenses 60.79 66.59
Repairs and maintenance
- Computers 171.70 131.33
- A C Maintenance 58.47 88.86
- Electrical 131.62 85.58
- Generator 78.57 44.16
- Vehicles 94.74 10.65
- Lifts 27.52 47.70
Carleasing Charges 99 97 229.50
Customer Welfare 13.48 5.64
Expenses under CSR Scheme 58.83 63.80
tax Income Tax Earlier Years 0.03 -

Auditors remuneration

-Statutory audit 7.50 7.50
-Tax audit 0.75 0.75
Donations 344.05 198.93
23,868.57 11,877.65
26 Finance costs

Interest on Bank CC A/c 464.74 416.67

Interest on TDS 40.97 -
Interest on Vehicle Loan 50.85 76.11
Interest on Term Loan 487.42 638.89
Interest on Unsecured Loans 90.25 235.73

Interest on GST 163.71 -
Bank Charges 852.94 440.84
2,150.88 1,808.24

27 Depreciation & Amortization Expenses

reciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 3,544.05 3,190.65
reciation on Intangible Assets 67.52 52.32

C Yep

¢\
3,611.57 3,242.97
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

28 Earnings per Equity Share
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Unit 31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Earning Per Equity Share
Net Proft after Tax Rupees 4,743 2,363
Equity Shares outstanding Numbers 8,110,000 8,110,000
Nominal value of Equity Share Rupees 10.00 10.00
Basic Eamings Per Share in Rupees Rupees 5848 29.14
Diluted Earnings Per Share in Rupees Rupees 58.48 29.14
29  Contingent liabilities
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Corporate Guarantees on behalf of Associates 8,320 8,320
30  Segment Reporting
As company's business activity falls with in a single primary business i.e. Trading of Textiles & Garments. Hence
the disclosure requirement of Accounting Standar (AS}-17 'Segmental Reporting' issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India is not applicable.
31 Expenditure in foreign currency :  NIL
32 The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as under:
i) GRATUITY 2021-22 2020-21
Present Value of Obligation 1,379.47 944.72
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net Liability recognized in Balance Sheet as Provision 1,379.47 944.72

Changes in the preent value of obligation representing reconciliation of operaning and closing balances

there are as under

PARTICULARS 2021-22 2020-21

a. Change in present value of obligation

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 944.72 839.45
Interest cost 65.28 57.25
Current Service Cost 275.92 165.45
Prior Service Cost - Vested Benefit 2 -
Benefits paid -
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligation 93.54 117.42
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 1,379.47 944.72

b. Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair value of Plan Assets as at the beginning of the year

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Contributions

(Benefits paid)

Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year
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The amounts recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022 are as

ii)

iii)

33

34

(A)

(B)

()

under

PARTICULARS 2021-22 2020-21
Current Service Cost 275.92 165.45
Interest Cost 65.28 57.25
Past Service Cost = —
Less : Expected Return on Plan Assets

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized during the year 93.54 |- 117.42
Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss 434.75 105.27
Principle acturial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date are as follows

PARTICULARS 2021-22 2020-21
Discount rate per annum 7.32% 6.91%
Rate of escalation in Salary (per Annum) 6.50% 4.50%
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years

The rate of escalation in Salary considered in actuarial valuation is estimated taking into account inflation,

seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

The company has determined the liability for employee gratuity benefits as at 31st March 2022 in
accordance with the Revised Accounting Standard 15 - Employee benefits notified under relevant

provisions of the Companies Act 2013

Managerial Remuneration {Amount in Lakhs)
Year ended | Year ended
Particulars 31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Director Remuneration 1,560.00 1,101.53

Details of Products Sold

{Amount in Lakhs)

For the Year

For the Year

ended ended
Products Sold 31 March | 31 March
2022 2021
Textiles & Garments 155,197 79,612

Details of Product Purchased (Stock in Trade)

(Amount in Lakhs)

For the Year | For the Year
Product Purch ended ended
rocuct Furchase 31 March | 31 March
2022 2021
Textiles & Garments 110,103.46 54,222.43
Details of [Inventories at the end
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2022 | March 2021
Textiles & Garments 32,635.03 26,524 83
Packing Material - 68.99
Total 32,635.03 26,593.82
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

35 As per Accounting Standard (AS-18) on Related Party Disclosures issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the disclosure of transactions with related parties as defined in the Accounting Standard
are given below

List of Related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships.

a. Associates

M/s. R S Brothers Jewellers Private Limited
M/s. R S Brothers Textiles & Garments, Dilsukhnagar
M/s. Status Textiles & Garments
M/s. Sree Venkateswara Enterprises
M/s. R S Avenues Private Limited
M/s. Southmade Retail Private Ltd
M/s. Merit Retail Private Ltd
M/s. Siddhi Vinayaka Fashions LLP

M/s. P Venkateswarulu Pvt Ltd

M/s S Rajamouli Pvt Ltd

M/s T Prasada Rao Pvt Ltd

M/s R S Ad Enterprises

=~

=~

S

b. Key Management Personnel
Sri P Venkateswarulu
Sri S Rajamouli
Sri P Satyanarayana
Sri T Prasada Rao
Mr S Suresh
Mr P V S Abhinay
Mr T Keshav Gupta

C. Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mr. P Chandra Sekhar
Mr S Venkata Ramana
Mr P Srinivasa Rao
Mr S Ramulu
Mr G V Ramesh Babu
Mr P V S Abhinay
Mr T Kesav Gupta
Ms P V L Spandana
Smt P Malathi Lakshmi Kumari
Ms P Rachana Sree
Ms P V L Greeshma
Mrs M Lalitha Ratna Kumari
Mrs G Kavith

RC >
*

x
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

D Transactions with related parties are as follows:

Particulars KMP Relatives of KMP Associate

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
1. Unsecured Loans
(a) Received during the year 1,500.00 6,059.00 580.00 - Nil Nil
(b) Returned during the year 3,587.58 3,030.20 459.12 100.00 Nil Nil
2. Expenditure
(a) Rent paid during the year 740.96 448.55 232.20 152.71 223.46 158.66
(b) Salary - < 577.45 277.58 - Nil
( ¢ ) Remuneration 1,560.00 1,101.53 - - - Nil
(d) Purchases Nil Nil - Nil 18.44 52.20
(e) Interest on Un-Secured Loans 6.50 71.90 83.75 163.82 - -
(f) Management Fee 2,496.00 -
(g) Advertisement 372.26 -
3. Income
a) Rental Income during the year - - - - 581.50 462.00
b) Sales - - - - 5,857.06 3,404.75
¢) Advertisement Income 9.01 -
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

Disclosure in respect of transaction which are more than 10% of the total transaction of the same type related
parties during the year

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Unsecured Loans Taken

Mrs. P ML Kumari 1,400.00 3,830.00
Sri P Venkateswarlu - 623.40
Sri S Rajamouli 100.00 521.60

Sri T Prasada Rao - 1,084.00

Mrs P V Sujatha 180.00 -

Mrs G Lalitha 400.00 -

Unsecured Loans Returned

Sri P Venkateswarlu 13.04 660.30
Sri S Rajamouli 28.31 483.50
Sri T Prasada Rao 284.22 1,886.40
Mrs. P M L Kumari 3,262.01 779.11
Mrs.M V L Sindhu 0.04 -

Mrs. P V L Spandana 58.78 100.00
Mrs G Lalitha 400.31 -

Directors Remuneration

Sri P Venkateswarulu 450.00 360.00
Sri S Rajamouli 450.00 360.00
Sri T Prasada Rao 300.00 240.00
Sri P V Sai Abhinay 120.00 47.18
Sri S Suresh 120.00 47.18
Sri T.Keshav Gupta 120.00 47.18

Management Fee

M/s. P Venkateswarulu Pvt Ltd 936.00 -
M/s S Rajamouli Pvt Ltd 936.00 -
M/s T Prasada Rao Pvt Ltd 624.00 -

Rent Received

R S Brothers Jewellers Private Limited 581.50 438.50
Rent paid

Sree Venkateswara Enterprises 72.93 63.32

R S Avenues Pvt Ltd 15053 | 95.33
Sri P Venkateswarulu 277.86 167.90
Sri S Rajamouli 277.86 167.90
Sri T Prasada Rao 185.24 112.76
Smt P Malathi Lakshmi Kumari 193.07 118.73
Sri T Rakesh 3.91 3.40
Sri T Keshav Gupta 3.91 3.40
Sri S Suresh 15.65 13.59
Smt M V L Sindhu 15.65 13.59

Advertisement paid
R S Ad Enterprises 372.26 -
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INTEREST PAID
Mrs G Lalitha 3.09 R
Sri T Prasada Rao 6.50 71.90
Mrs. P M L Kumari 72.41 152.30
Mrs. M V L Sindhu 0.38 0.51
Mrs. P V L Spandana 7.87 11.01

SALARIES
Sri S Ramulu 25.60 19.49
Sri P Chandra Sekhar Rao 29.25 24.14
Sri S Venkataramana 62.50 49.50
Sri. P Srinivasa Rao 25.60 19.13
Sri G V Ramesh Babu 62.50 49.28
Mrs. P V L Spandana 24.00 18.28
Ms. P V L Greeshma 90.00 19.38
Mrs. P M L Kumari 120.00 60.00
Ms P Rachana Sree 90.00 18.38
Mrs M Lalitha Ratna Kumari 24.00 18.30
Mrs G Kavitha 24.00 18.47
Sales
R S Brothers Textiles & Garments, 877.11 374.12
Southmade Retail Private Limited 633.17 310.85
Merit Retail Private Limited 1,483.64 864.59
Siddhi Vinayaka Fashions LLP 2,772.09 1,807.98
Status Textiles & Garments 91.07 47.20
Advertisement Income
R S Brothers Jewellers Private Limited 9.01 -

E Disclosure in respecct of non-monetary transactions with the Related Parties during the year

Name of the Related Party 2021-22 2020-21 Purpose

R S Brothers Jewellers Private Limited 7,320.00 7,320.00 |Corporate Guarantee
for the facilities
availed with SBI

Southmade Retail Private Limited 1,000.00 1,000.00 |Corporate Guarantee
for the facilities
availed with ICICI
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36 Details of Nature of Security and terms of repayment for Long-Term & Short Term Borrowings -

a. SBI Cash Credit and Term Loan: The above loan from Bank includes, Cash Credit and Term Loan from SBI Bank is secured Primary and
collecteral securities as detailed below. Cash Credit and WCL Loan sanctioned for Rs. 65 Crores. The GECL Term Loan Sanctioned Rs. 12.50 Crores
and repayable in 48 Quarterly installments of Rs. 25,91,770 commencing from 01 /02/2022 and Interest Rate 7.95% PA.

Primary Security: for Cash  Credit and CCECL: Pari Passu first charge by way of Hypothecation of entire current assets of the
company, both present and future, with ICICI Bank Limited. for GECL 2.0 : Extension of charge (2nd charge) on the entire current assets of
the company both present and future

Collateral Security : Exclusive first charge by way of mortgage of immovable properties/ assets listed below:

ai. 850 sq.yds of land and building thereon bearing H No 4-1-372,4-1-373,4-1-374,4-1-382 and 4-1-383 situated at Abids, Hyderabad
belonging to Sri Venkateswara Enterprises represented by Shri. P Venkateswarlu, Shri. S Raja Mouli, Shri. P Satyanarayana, Shri. T
Prasada Rao, Smt. P V Sujatha and Smt. S Suvarna (Holding 95 sq. yds each), Smt. PM L Kumari and Smt. T V S Padmavathi (Holding 75 sq.
yds each) Shri. P. Shri. Venkateswarlu (HUF) and Shri. S.Rajamouli (HUF) (Holding 65 Sq. yds each) Total Extent: 850 sq yds.

aii). Building bearing MCH Nos. 4-1-372,373 and 374 known as Das Estate, Abids, Hyderabad 500001 with built up area of 960 Sq. ft. with
undivided share of land admeasuring 42.36 Sq. yds. situated at Abids, Hyderabad belonging to Shri P.Venkateswarlu s/o
BapaRao, Shri S. Raja Mouli s/o Vishwanatham, Shri. T.PrasadRao s/o Krishna Murthy and Shri. P. Satyanarayana s/ o BapaRao.

aiii). Residential House No.16-2-139/5'1 with land admeasuring 210 Sq. yds. situated at Plot No.242, Ward No.16, Akbar Bagh,
Malakpet, Hyderabad 500036 standing in the name of Shri.P Venkateswarlu.

aiv). Residential House bearing House No.16-2-139a with land admeasuring 210 Sq. yds. situated at Plot No.242, Ward No.16, Akbar Bagh,
Malakpet, Hyderabad 500036 standing in the name of Shri. T.Prasada Rao.

av). Residential House bearing House No0.16-2-139N 4, with land admeasuring 210 Sq. yds. situated at Plot No.242, Ward No.16, Akbar
Bagh, Malakpet, Hyderabad 500036 standing in the name of SmtS. Suvarna.

avi). Residential House bearing House No.16-2-139a, with land admeasuring 210 Sq. yds. situated at Plot No.242, Ward No.16, Akbar Bagh,
Malakpet, Hyderabad 500036 standing in the name of Smt P Malati Lakshmi Kumari.

avii). Extension of EM of Plot no. 307 with building thereon situated at Jubilee Hills Cooperative building layout, Sy. No.40/1, New 120,
Shaikpet Village at Sy no 102/1, Hakimpet, Golconda, Hyderabad standing in the name of Shri S Rajamouli.

aviii). First0 charge on unencumbered movable assets of the company which includes Plant & Machinery, Office Equipment, Electrical Fittings,
Furniture and Fittings, Motor Vehicles etc. Extension of charge (2" d charge) on the exisling collaterals listed above. ¢ Dlersonal
Guarantee of Shri P Venkateswarlu, Shri S. Rajamouli, Shri. T. Prasad Rao, Smt. P. V. Sujatha, Smt. S. Suvarna and Smt. P Malati Lakshmi
Kumari, Shri T Keshav Gupta & Shri. T Rakesh. * Corporate Guarantee of Sri Venkateswara Enterprises.

b. HDFC Bank Cash Credit : The above loan from Bank includes, Cash Credit is secured Primary securities as detailed below. The Cash Credit
Sanctioned Rs. 15.00 Crores commencing from 19/06/2021 and Interest Rate 7.95

Primary Security: * Current Assets: First Pari Passu Charge on Current assets of Company both Present and Future.

»  Commercial Property: Commercial property in the name of Mr.Potti Venkateswarlu, Mr.Seerna Rajamouli, Mrs. Malathi Lakshmi Kumari
M. Potti &Mr. Tiruveedhula Prasada Rao with address :Unit No. 2, 3, 4, 6, Ground Floor, Unit No. 1 & 2, 1st Floor, Part of Unit No.1 & Part of
Unit No.2 2nd Floor, Imperial Towers, GHMC No. 7-1-617/ A,615 and 616, Sy No. 238 Part and 242 Part, Ameerpet, Hyderabad, Telangana
500082.

»  Personal Guarantors: Mr. Venkateswarlu Potti, Mr, Tiruveedhula Prasada Rao, Mr.Seerna Raja Mouli, Mrs Malathi Lakshmi Kumari.




R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

¢. HDFC Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes, Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below. The Term Loan
Sanctioned Rs. 31.00 Crores commencing from 19/06/2021 and Interest Rate 7.20

Primary Security: Movable Fixed Assets: First Pari Passu Charge on Current assets of

Company both Present and Future and Exclusive Charge on entire movable fixed assets purchased out of our Term Loan. Commercial
Property: Commercial property in llie name of Mr.Potti Venkateswarlu, Mr.Seerna Rajamouli, Mrs. Marathi Lakshmi Kumari, Mr. Potti &Mr.
Tiruveedhula Prasada Rao with address :Unit No. 2, 3, 4, 6, Ground Floor, Unit No. 1 & 2, 1st Floor, Part of Unit No.1 & Part of Unit No.2 2nd
Floor, Imperial Towers, GHMC No. 7-1-617/ A,615 and 616, Sy No.238Pa:tand242Pafi, Ameerpet,Hyderabad, Teangana50008Z Personal
Guarantors: Mr. Venkateswarlu Potti, Mr. Tiruveedhula Prasada Rao, Mr.Seerna Raja Mouli, Mrs Malathi Lakshmi Kumari.

d. Kotak Mahindra Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes, Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below. The
Term Loan Sanctioned Rs. 12.00 Crores commencing from 30/06/2017 and Interest Rate 9.00

Primary Security: Commercial Property: Purchase of Commercial property in llie name of M/s. R.S.Brothers Retail India Private Limited
under Registered Sale Deed Document No. 4134 / 2017 Regd. at SRO at Saroor Nagar of GHMC No. 11-131428/12,11-13-1428/13 and 11-13-
1428/14 on Plot Nos.8,9 and 10, in Survey no. 7/C, Ward No.11, Block No.13 situated at NH-9, of MARGADARSHI COLONY OF SAROOR
NAGAR VILLAGE AND REVENUE MANDAL, Ranga Reddy Distrcit, Under GHMC, L.B.Nagar Circle, Telangana State.

e. Kotak Mahindra Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes, Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below. The
Term Loan Sanctioned Rs. 10.00 Crores commencing from 30/07/2017 and Interest Rate 9.50

Primary Security: Commercial Property: Purchase of Commercial property in llie name of M/s. R.S.Brothers Retail India Private Limited
under Registered Sale Deed Document No. 4134 / 2017 Regd. at SRO at Saroor Nagar of GHMC No. 11-131428/12,11-13-1428/13 and 11-13-
1428/14 on Plot Nos.8,9 and 10, in Survey no. 7/C, Ward No.11, Block No.13 situated at NH-9, of MARGADARSHI COLONY OF SAROOR
NAGAR VILLAGE AND REVENUE MANDAL, Ranga Reddy Distrcit, Under GHMC, L.B.Nagar Circle, Telangana State.

f. Kotak Mahindra Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes, Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below. The
Term Loan Sanctioned Rs. 25.00 Crores, but released for Rs. 15.00 Crores, commencing from 07/01/2020 and Interest Rate 9.50

Primary Security: Purchase of Commercial Land in llie name of M/s. RS.Brothers Retail India Private Limited under Registered Sale Deed
Document No. 4134 / 2017 Regd. at SRO at Saroor Nagar of GHMC No. 11-131428/12,11-13-1428/13 and 11-13-1428/14 on Plot Nos.8,9 and 10, in
Survey no. 7/C, Ward No.11, Block No.13 situated at NH-9, of MARGADARSHI COLONY OF SAROOR NAGAR VILLAGE AND REVENUE
MANDAL, Ranga Reddy Distrcit, Under GHMC, L.B.Nagar Circle, Telangana State.

g. Axis Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes, Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below. The Term Loan
Sanctioned Rs. 8.38 Crores, commencing from 01/02/2017 and Interest Rate 9.75

Primary Security: Purchase of Commercial Property inlie name of M/s. RS.Brothers Retail India Private Limited under Registered Sale Deed
Document No. 546/2017 Regd. at SRO at Banjarahills Shop No.1 (Part) & Shop No. 2 (Part) at Level 4 Third Floor, in the building named
"VASAVI'S MPM GRAND" in premises nos. 8-3-323/C/1, 8-3-323/7 to 10, 8-3-323/1, 8-3-323/1a/a, 8-3-323/4, 8-3-323/3, 8-3-323/G, 8-3-323/11,
8-3-322/2, 8-3-322/3 situated at Ycllareddy Guda, Ameerpet, Hyderabad, Telangana State.

h. Axis Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes, Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below. The Term Loan
Sanctioned Rs. 10.00 Crores, commencing from 25/10/2017 and Interest Rate 8.85

Primary Security: Purchase of Commercial Property inlie name of M/s. RS Brothers Retail India Private Limited under Registered Sale Deed
Document No. 2905/2018 Regd. at SRO at Jublihills Shop No.1 (Part) & Shop No. 2 (Part) at Level 2 First Floor, in the building named "VASAVI'S
MPM GRAND" in premises nos. 8-3-323/C/1, 8-3-323/7 to 10, 8-3-323/1, 8-3-323/1a/a, 8-3-323/4, 8-3-323/3, 8-3-323/G, 8-3-323/11, 8-3-322/2, 8-3-
322/3 situated at YellareddywGuda, Ameerpet, Hyderabad, Telangana State.
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i. HDFC Car Loans: The Above loan from Bank includes, Vehicle Loans from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicles Carrying a value of Rs. 241.48
Lakhs. The Principle is repayables as follows as mentioned below. Total Loans sanctioned Rs. 2,11,31,000 and Total of EMI 'S 622347. There is no
defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

i) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 37.24 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36 Months commencing
from 07/12/2020. Loan sanctioned Rs. 35,50,000 and EMI 110925. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

ii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 34.78 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36 Months commencing
from 07/02/2021. Loan sanctioned Rs. 34,00,000 and EMI 106473. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

iii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 24.13 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36 Months commencing
from 07/09/2021. Loan sanctioned Rs. 21,01,000 and EMI 65794. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

iv) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 28.28 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36 Months commencing
from 07/09/2021. Loan sanctioned Rs. 24,00,000 and EMI 75157. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

v) Vehicle Loans from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 19.84 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36 Months commencing
from 05/01/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 17,00,000 and EMI 52814. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

vi) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 20.77 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 07/03/2021. Loan sanctioned Rs. 15,00,000 and EMI 30272. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

vii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 20.67 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
commencing from 05/04/2021. Loan sanctioned Rs. 15,00,000 and EMI 30272. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the

year.
viii) Vehicle Loans from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicles Carrying a value of Rs. 55.75 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 37 Months
commercing from 05/09/2021. Loan sanctioned Rs. 49,80,000 and EMI 150640. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the
year.

j- AXIS Bank Car Loan: The Above loan from Bank includes, Vehicle Loan from Axis Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. §92.01
Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing from 01/01/2020. Loan sanctioned Rs. 7,50,00,000 and EMI 1551786. There is no
defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

k. TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES Car Loan : The loan from Financial Services includes, Vehicle Loan from Toyota Financial Services is
secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 78.93 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36 Months commencing from 20/07/2020. Loan sanctioned
Rs. 66,00,000 and EMI 206516. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

1. BMW FINANCIAL SERVICES Car Loan : The loan from BMW Financial Services includes, Vehicle Loan from BMW Financial Services is
secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 22.74 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36 Months commencing from 16/12/2020. Loan sanctioned
Rs. 19,93,780 and EMI 63634. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

m. KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED Car Loan : The loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. includes, Vehicle Loan from Kotak Mahindra
Prime Ltd. is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 17.59 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36 Months commencing from 05/06/2019. Loan
sanctioned Rs. 17,00,000 and EMI 54315. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.
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Additional Regulatory information
pursuant to Clause 6L of General Instructions for preparation of Balance Sheet as given in Part | of Division Il of Schedule IIl to the Companies Act, 2013, are given hereunder
to the extent relevant and other than those given elsewhere in any other notes to the Financial Statements.
a. Ratlos (Amount in Lacs)
31st March 2022 31st March 2021 ) Reason
Ratlo Name Formula %Variance for
Numerator Denomlnator Ratlo Numerator DenomInator Ratlo variance
urrent Assets / NA, since variance not
Current Current 38,986.95 36,921.81 1.06 31,569.93 30,360.28 1.04 1.55 .
Liabilities exceeding 25%
Total Debt / Decrease was primarily on
Debi-Equity Shareholder's 8,298.16 24,571.46 0.34 10,980.16 19,828.34 0.55 (39.01%) was primarily
N account of increase in PAT
Equity
Earnings
available for debt
service (PAT +
Interest cost +
Foreign
Exchange Loss
or (Gain) (net) +
. Depreciation) / . :
Debt Service . NA, since variance not
Coverage Debt Service ( 10,505.57 5,333.59 1.97 7,414.56 4,214.26 1.76 11.95 exceeding 25%
Interest cost &
lease payments
+ repayment of
non current debt
made during the
period excluding
refinanced
loans))
Net Profit after
Taxes / PAT of the current year is
Return on Equity |Avg Equity 4,743.12 22,199.80 0.21 2,363.35 18,646 67 0.13 68.57 |more than previous year
Shareholder's due to Higher Sales
Fund
Average R
Inventory Decrease was primarily on
Turnover Inventory /Total 29,614.42 1,565,197.15 0.19 25,354.21 79,612.26 0.32 (40.08%) account of increase Sales
Turnover
Revenue from
Trade operations / Increase was primarily on
Receivables Average 1,565,197.15 2,370.23 65.48 79,612.26 3,130.97 25.43 157.51 |account of increase in
Turnover Accounts Sales
Receivable
Operating exp & . .
Increase in operating and
"T'Ladzv: fyab'e 2\‘,:‘:; e:pTe:Z‘;/ 1,44,301.68 21,051.44 6.85 72,937.53 19,058.87 3.83 79.12 |Other Expenses due to
m ge 1T increase in Sales
Payable
Net Capital Revenue from NA, since variance not
Tumover Operation / 1,65,197.15 2,065.14 75.15 79,612.26 1,209.66 65.81 14,19 excéeding 25%
Working Capital
Profit After Tax
/ NA, since variance not
Net Profit Revenue from 4,743 .12 1.55,197.15 0.03 2,363.35 79,612.26 0.03 2.95 exceeding 25%
Operations
Earnings before
Intercst
andTaxes / .
Return on Capital|Capital PAT of the current year is
Emploved P 8,446.52 69,402.98 0.12 4,323.00 60,673.95 0.07 70.81 |more than previous year
ploy Employed due to Higher Sales
(Tangible
Networth+Total
Debt)
Return on PAT/(Paid up PAT of the current year is
Investment Capital+Share 4,743.12 811.00 5.85 2,363.35 811.00 291 100.69 |more than previous year
Premium) due to Higher Sales
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| amounts are in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,2013
or section 560 of Companies Act,1956.

. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC)
beyond the statutory period

. The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

f. The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by and bank or financials institution or lender during the

year.

. The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act,1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

. The Company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall;

i. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate beneficiaries), or

ii. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

. The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign
entities(intermediaries), with the understanding that the intermediary shall;

i. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries), or

ii. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

. The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for
which it was obtained.

k The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act

read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

1 Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions
are in agreement with the books of accounts.

m The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the

lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial
statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress are held in the name of
the Company as at the balance sheet date.

for any scheme of arrangements in terms of section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act,2013



(o]

Corporate Social Responsibility Statement (CSR)

The Company was required to spend 58.44 lakhs (March 31, 2021 : 63.80 lakhs) towards CSR during
the year in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has
spent - 58.44 lakhs (March 31, 2021 : ~ 63.80 lakhs) on CSR activities during the year for purpose of

construction / acquisition of any asset.

(" in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March,

Year ended 31st
March, 2021

PARTICULARS 2022
Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year,as per 58.44 63.80
Section 135 of the Act
Amount of expenditure incurred on:
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset - -
(ij On purpose other than (i) above 58.44 37.14
Shortfall at the end of the year - 26.66
Total of previous years shortfall -
Reason for shortfall Not Applicable Not Applicable

Nature of CSR activities

Promotion of
Education and
Social Welfare

Promotion of
Education and
Social Welfare

Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure -
as per relevant Accounting Standard

38 Rounding of amounts all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off
to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule I1I, unless otherwise stated.

39 previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to conform to current
period’s classification in order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule IIT to the
Companies Act,2013 effective 1sL April, 2021.

For and on behalf of the Board of directors

- ¢

P. Venkateswariu S Rajamouli
Director Director

for RCV & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 0171808

Ch. Raju

Partner

Membership No. 204732
UDIN NO:

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02/09/2022

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02/09/2022

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02/09/2022




